Children’s & Education Select Committee agenda
Date:

Thursday 4 June 2020

Time:

2.00 pm

Venue:

Virtual Meeting - MS teams

Membership:
S Adoh, D Barnes, M Collins, E Culverhouse, D Dhillon, B Foster, A Hussain, N Hussain,
S Jarvis, D Johncock, R Jones, P Kelly, R Stuchbury, P Turner and J Ward

Webcasting notice
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the council's
website. At the start of the meeting the chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is
being filmed.
You should be aware that the council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act.
Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the council’s
published policy.
Therefore by entering the meeting room, you are consenting to being filmed and to the
possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.
If members of the public do not wish to have their image captured they should ask the
committee clerk, who will advise where to sit.
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the monitoring officer at
monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk.
Agenda Item
1

Election of Chairman
To elect the Chairman of the Children’s and Education
Select Committee for the ensuing year.

2

Appointment of Vice-Chairman
To appoint the Vice-Chairman of the Children’s and
Education Select Committee for the ensuing year.

Time

Page No

3

Apologies for Absence/Changes in membership

4

Declarations of Interest

5

Covid-19 Update
The Committee will receive an update on the Covid-19
response in connection with Children’s Services and
Education.

14:10

5 - 14

15:10

15 - 24

Contributors:
Mr Mark Shaw, Cabinet Member for Children’s Services
Mrs Anita Cranmer, Cabinet Member for Education
Mr Tony Green, Cabinet Member for Youth Provision
Mr Tolis Vouyioukas, Corporate Director, Children’s
Services
Mr Richard Nash, Service Director – Children’s Social Care
Mr Simon James, Service Director - Education
Papers:
Covid-19 Update report
6

Key priorities for 2020-21
The Committee will hear from the Cabinet Members for
Children’s Services, Education and Youth Provision, who
will outline their priorities for the next 12 months.
Contributors:
Mr Mark Shaw, Cabinet Member for Children’s Services
Mrs Anita Cranmer, Cabinet Member for Education
Mr Tony Green, Cabinet Member for Youth Provision
Mr Tolis Vouyioukas, Corporate Director, Children’s
Services
Mr Richard Nash, Service Director – Children’s Social Care
Mr Simon James, Service Director – Education
Papers:
Children’s Services Priorities

7

Work Programme Discussion
The Committee will discuss possible items to include on
the Committee’s work programme for the coming year.

16:00

Contributors:
All Committee Members
8

Date of next meeting
Thursday 10th September 2020 at 2pm

16:30

If you would like to attend a meeting, but need extra help to do so, for example because of
a disability, please contact us as early as possible, so that we can try to put the right support
in place.
For further information please contact: Kelly Sutherland on 01296 383602, email
democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5

Report to Children’s & Education Select Committee
Date: Thursday 4 June 2020
Reference number: N/A
Title: COVID-19 Service Response
Relevant councillor(s):

Cllr Mark Shaw, Cabinet Member Children’s Services
Cllr Anita Cranmer, Cabinet Member Education and Skills
Cllr Tony Green, Cabinet Member Youth Provision

Author and/or contact officer: Tolis Vouyioukas, Corporate Director Children’s Services
Recommendations: For the Select Committee to note the way in which the directorate has
responded and adapted its approach to service delivery during the COVID-19 pandemic.
Content of report
Children’s Social Care
1.1

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a significant impact upon statutory children’s
services. Protecting children and improving vulnerable children’s outcomes is
predicated upon direct, face to face interactions. It is also based upon co-located
teams with visible and available line management. The subject matter of social work
means that it is vitally important to support staff and focus upon their well-being
particularly during these unprecedented circumstances.

1.2

It became clear during March 2020 that reducing the risk of infection and protecting
the community as well as our staff was of primary importance. As a result, visits to
children had to stop, unless there were extreme circumstances. The service took a
number of proactive and robust steps to maximise the collective ability to still keep
children safe and protect the most vulnerable. These were, in chronological order:




16 March 2020: Daily Microsoft Teams meetings with managers and teams.
These meetings enabled the service to focus on the most vulnerable and high risk
cases, to ensure those children were safe.
20 March 2020: Changes were made to the electronic recording system so that
work impacted by COVID-19 could be clearly recorded and accounted for.

Page 5







Systems were devised to ensure each team had a real time view of their activity
and ensure no children were missed out.
30 March 2020: A set of minimum standards for conducting virtual visits to
families was published. These minimum standards had been developed during
the previous two weeks and defined a virtual contact as one where the social
worker has successfully persuaded the family to interact with them using video
on an electronic device.
30 March 2020: Home visits to families could only take place if agreed by the
relevant Head of Service and only when social workers had access to Personal
Protective Equipment (PPE).
30 March 2020: A comprehensive audit and dip sampling process was set up so
that the whole service including senior managers can have a clear understanding
of the work of the service in the current high risk environment.

1.3

The decisions taken by the service in response to COVID-19 were put in place before
any guidance from the Department for Education (DfE). However, senior leaders in
the service had close contact with the DfE and OFSTED via regular Microsoft Teams
meetings. The service carefully explained all of the actions that had been taken in
detail, as highlighted above. Our response to COVID-19 was supported and indeed
confirmed that a number of other local authorities were taking similar steps.

1.4

In addition to the daily contact with the DfE, senior leaders also had very regular
contact with Buckinghamshire schools Headteacher representatives. These meetings,
often daily and at least three times a week, have focused upon a number of concerns
including the attendance at school of children who have a social worker. The number
of children attending school in this category is between 10% and 13%. This is in line
with other local authority areas and reflects the fact that school attendance in this
context is voluntary and requires each family to make their own decision. Both
individual schools and social workers have worked together to assist families to
make the right decision for their children.

1.5

The current position across the service is that the number of home visits that are
required to ensure children are safe has increased the longer restrictions have been
in place. This increase reflects the growing pressures within some families and the
need for some children to have their circumstances carefully assessed in ways that a
video virtual visit does not allow.

1.6

Overall, the available evidence demonstrates that just over 96% of cases have had a
contact with a social worker every 4 weeks during the COVID-19 period with 79% of
those agreeing to video virtual contacts. There is evidence of managers having close
oversight of the work and that where physical visits are required, these are carried
out promptly, based upon the probable risk.

Page 6

Family Support Service
1.7

Since 23 March 2020, the Family Support Service has had to reduce some aspects of
service delivery and adapted others in accordance with Government and
organisational directives.

1.8

The Family Centres which provide universal and targeted partnership support have
closed and support for families has moved to an on-line and virtual support offer.
One site has continued to be used by health for clinical meetings with highly
vulnerable clients who are seen by appointment only and with strict social distancing
adhered to supported by PHE and NHS safety measures.

1.9

The service continues to provide support to vulnerable families with complex needs
currently through telephone and on-line platforms to provide face to face advice,
support and guidance. Currently, the service is still supporting over 1030 children
and young people to respond to any changes in circumstances that increase risks to
children’s safety. Using online tools and continuing to work with schools, albeit
remotely, staff are becoming more innovative in ways of engaging families and for
example capturing the voice of the child. For less complex needs, support on a one
to one basis with young people continues, but is also restricted to virtual support,
and we are working closely with other agencies including CAMHS and the schoolbased Mental Health Support Teams to provide appropriate support.

1.10

The Buckinghamshire Family Information Service (BFIS) has been extremely active,
developing and sharing a huge amount of online resource ranging from virtual days
out to home schooling tips and resources, customised local offer as well as providing
a central point for current Government advice and significantly, a great deal of selfhelp support and guidance for residents who need lower levels of support. BFIS
quickly developed a new home page from which all COVID-19 related links and
resources can be easily found and work with lots of partner agencies to ensure it
remains current and easy to navigate. Feedback for service users has been very
positive.

1.11

Adult Learning has responded to closure of sites by moving a significant proportion
of delivery online and are engaging hundreds of students through virtual classrooms
and tutorials with positive levels of engagement and feedback. In addition, weekly
“Keeping in Touch” newsletters have been produced to support those learners with
whom they work. It includes very simple activities suitable for children under the age
of five and school age children, with an emphasis on play rather than on activities
linked to the curriculum. This reinforces a key message regarding the important role
that play has in children’s lives, supporting their well-being and their capacity to
learn.

Page 7

SEND Service
1.12

On 30 April 2020, the government put into place amended legislation in relation to
Section 42 of the Children and Families Act. This relates to the help for children and
young people as describe in their EHCP. For those in Buckinghamshire, the Act
places on Buckinghamshire Council and Buckinghamshire Clinical Commissioning
Group an absolute duty to provide the help as set out in the child’s EHCP. However,
from 1 May, for at least one month, the Section 42 duty has been eased. The
absolute duty to deliver the provisions identified was modified by the regulations
and now ‘reasonable endeavours’ must be used to deliver as much of the identified
provision within EHCPs as possible. The modification of the duty does not mean that
the provision set out in an EHCP does not have to be delivered, but rather that
consideration is given in relation to each child as to what it is reasonably possible to
deliver. This should take into consideration the local circumstances arising from the
restrictions imposed by COVID-19 and the needs and views of the child/young
person. Importantly, where unable to fulfil the Section 42 duty, decision making
should be recorded and the young person and/or parents should be kept fully
informed. This has required significant adaptation to the way the service delivers
provision and the service continues to work with children and their families on the
continued delivery of statutory provision, wherever possible.

1.13

Within the first week following the closure of schools for the majority of pupils, the
SEND service worked quickly to provide guidance and support which included:
a) Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP) needs assessment guidance to support
the remote completion of this process, including co-production meetings.
b) Guidance to support the remote completion and conduction of annual reviews
meetings.
c) Made available Specialist Teacher Provision for those children with EHCPs.
d) Specific support according to areas of need for those at home during this
pandemic.
e) Local Area SEND Improvement.

1.14

All of this guidance can be found here for schools: Schoolsweb - Bucks SEND
Guidance and here for families: Families - Bucks SEND Guidance

1.15

The key principles involved the support for settings and families during the pandemic
shifting to a more remote operation of access, e.g. remote EP advice for an EHC
needs assessment / virtual meetings / delivery of provision in EHCP. No statutory
process has been altered or changed; it has just been delivered in a different way,
meaning that commitments have remained, albeit creative in their delivery.

Page 8

1.16

In addition, the service has developed risk assessment guidance and a template for
completion for school attendance. This guidance has been written in line with the
Government guidance on SEN Risk Assessing, in that it takes the following into
account:
a) The potential health risks to the individual from COVID-19, bearing in mind any
underlying health conditions. This must be on an individual basis with advice
from an appropriate health professional where required.
b) The ability of the individual’s parents or home to ensure their health and care
needs can be met safely.
c) The potential impact to the individual’s wellbeing of changes to routine or the
way in which provision is delivered.
d) The risk to individuals who have EHCP if some or all elements of their EHC plan
cannot be delivered at all, and the risk if they cannot be delivered in the normal
manner or in the usual setting.
e) Any out of school or college risk or vulnerability, e.g. a young person becoming
involved in dangerous behaviour or situations and requiring support from a social
worker, including those where being in an educational setting can stop a care
placement breakdown.

1.17

The risk assessment is not fixed; it is inevitably impacted by any changes in
circumstances, such as staffing or environment and so will require ongoing
consideration. This has required significant additional capacity to the usual output of
the SEND service with EHC Coordinators and Area Team Managers coordinating this
response.

Achievement and Learning Service - Support to schools
1.18

All teams within the Achievement and Learning Service have been focused on
supporting schools during this period; much work, such as support for head teacher
appointments, has continued albeit in a virtual form. A significant amount of extra
work has been undertaken, often at short notice and with narrow timeframes for
delivery. Key areas of support have included:
a) The creation of a resource to answer frequently asked questions
At the start of the school lockdown, the team created a repository of knowledge
within the part of the council’s website that is dedicated for school staff. Within
the FAQ space we hold copies of all the relevant government publications related
to the situation and carefully researched answers to questions that have been
raised to us by schools. This resource continues to be updated daily the FAQ
section of the website continues to receive more than 2000 visits a week.
b) School support officers

Page 9

In order to provide further support to schools, the service organised additional
support to schools. School support officers place weekly calls to all schools in the
county, taking feedback on key issues, as well as providing updates on changes
that have taken place and manging any queries raised. This work also allows the
School Improvement Team to understand the type of issues and concerns raised
by schools which will aid future planning.
c) Creation of an emergency contact database
One significant issue at the start of the pandemic was the fact that schools would
often not be manning their reception desks. To ensure that officers from across
the directorate had the ability to contact appropriate staff in schools an
emergency contact database was set up. Schools submitted ‘out of hours’
contact details to allow appropriate contact from education and social care
colleagues in emergency situations.
d) Post COVID-19 Action Plan
Within three days of the announcement of opening schools to more pupils, the
School Improvement Team issued a plan for schools in response to DfE guidance.
This has been well received by schools and addresses many of the common
concerns and issues that schools were encountering.
e) Pupil Brokerage
To ensure that eligible children have been able to access a school place
throughout the period of partial closure, the Early Years and Admissions teams
have been running a brokerage service for parents in the event that their child’s
childcare setting or school has been closed. This has effectively ensured that
parents of vulnerable children and key workers have been able to secure
consistent childcare, including during the Easter holiday when required.
f) Pupil Laptop Scheme
Officers within the virtual school have been managing the allocation of over a
thousand laptops from the government led scheme to prioritise those vulnerable
and disadvantaged children who are entitled to access the devices, enabling
them to continue their education remotely.
g) PPE provision
Officers have worked closely with Public Health and headteacher representatives
to create a clear flowchart for schools identifying the need for PPE in specific
situations. The education allocation of the PPE resource has been delivered to

Page 10

schools. This has required over 4,000 individual items of PPE to be put into packs
and delivered to schools through distribution centres with the support of the
mutual aid cell.
School Attendance Summary
1.19

In the period since the partial closure of schools on the 24 March 2020, schools have
been sending attendance data to the Department for Education. This has been made
available through a daily download to Local Authorities and has allowed us to track
attendance of specific metrics. Please see the graphs below:

Buckinghamshire Schools
Total Number of Schools
272

250

School Easter Holidays

200

Bank
Holidays

Bank DfE Reporting
Holiday Problem

DfE Reporting
Problem

150

Number open during Covid19
Min Max
17
205

100

50

% of schools opening during
Covid19
Min Max
6.3% 75.4%

0

Maximum national average = 96%

Proportion of establishments open
93% 96% 96% 96%
81% 78%
77% 77% 76% 74%

38%

Buckinghamshire

70% 70% 70% 69%
59%

21-May

22-May

19-May

20-May

15-May

18-May

13-May

14-May

11-May

12-May

07-May

10%

08-May

29-Apr

30-Apr

27-Apr

28-Apr

23-Apr

24-Apr

21-Apr

22-Apr

17-Apr

20-Apr

15-Apr

'16-Apr

13-Apr

6% 6%

'14-Apr

09-Apr

64%

32%

'10-Apr

07-Apr

'08-Apr

03-Apr

06-Apr

01-Apr

02-Apr

31-Mar

27-Mar

30-Mar

25-Mar

26-Mar

23-Mar

69%
57%

20%

24-Mar

71% 70%

44% 44% 44% 42%

40% 42% 40% 40%

0%

72% 71% 71% 68%

71% 69% 68% 71% 71% 69% 68%
67% 69%

49%

05-May

71% 69%
67% 67% 66% 68% 65%
62%

40%

79% 81% 80% 80% 79% 80% 81% 81% 80% 79%
64%

62% 62% 62% 61%

06-May

75%

60%

80% 80% 80% 77% 81% 81% 81% 80%
76% 78% 79% 79% 78% 79%
65% 62% 62%
61%

01-May

80%

04-May

100%

National

1.20

Schools in Buckinghamshire have shown three distinct (and expected) patterns of
opening since the partial closure began. During term time there have been roughly
190 out of a total of 237 schools open each day, this figure fluctuates slightly
depending on need and staff availability. The total number of schools above is
inclusive of independent schools. The number fell to around 100 during the holidays
as schools were mainly catering for pupils who were children of key workers and
many parents had arranged leave during the Easter period anticipating that schools
would be closed. A very small number of schools remained open across the bank
holidays as there was a very low request from parents to take up the offer of
childcare.

1.21

In looking at the overall number of children attending school during this period,
there has been an overall gradual increase during ‘normal’ school weeks, this has
largely been driven by the increase in vulnerable children and those with EHCPs
returning to school over the longer period although there has also been a moderate
increase in the use of schools to support children of key workers too.

Page 11

All children attending
Buckinghamshire schools
Total Cohort
95456

2500

School Easter Holidays

2000

Bank
Holidays

(Jan-20 census for state-funded schools and
published Jan-19 for independent schools)

1500

Covid19 Cohort
Min Max
65
1726

1000

DfE Reporting
Problem

Bank DfE Reporting
Holiday
Problem

500

% of possible cohort
attending during Covid19
Min Max
0.1% 1.8%

0

Maximum national average = 2.4%

Proportion of pupils attending
5%
3.7%

2.4%

0.9% 1.0% 1.0% 0.9%

1800

2.1%

2.3% 2.4% 2.3%

2.3% 2.4%

2.5% 2.4%

2.0% 2.0% 1.9% 2.0%

1.8% 1.9% 2.0% 1.8%

1.8% 1.8% 1.7%

2.2%

1.7%

2.5% 2.6%

2.7% 2.6%

2.1% 2.2% 2.2% 2.1%

2.3%

1.7%

21-May

22-May

19-May

20-May

15-May

18-May

13-May

14-May

11-May

12-May

07-May

0.2%

08-May

05-May

29-Apr

27-Apr

28-Apr

23-Apr

24-Apr

21-Apr

22-Apr

17-Apr

1.9%

0.7%

20-Apr

15-Apr

0.1% 0.1%

'16-Apr

13-Apr

09-Apr

2.1% 2.0%

1.5%

1.5% 1.6% 1.6% 1.4% 1.6%

Buckinghamshire

Children of key workers
attending
Buckinghamshire schools

1.9% 2.0%

0.6% 0.6% 0.6% 0.6%

'10-Apr

07-Apr

'08-Apr

1.3%

1.6%

06-May

0.4%

1.8% 1.9% 1.8%

01-May

0.6%

0.5% 0.6% 0.6% 0.6%

03-Apr

0.8%

01-Apr

25-Mar

26-Mar

23-Mar

24-Mar

0%

0.9% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9%

1.1% 1.2% 1.2% 1.1% 1.0%
02-Apr

1.1% 1.0%

31-Mar

1.5%

27-Mar

1%

'14-Apr

1.3% 1.3% 1.4% 1.4% 1.3% 1.2%

1.6%

04-May

1.8%

06-Apr

2.0%
2%

30-Apr

3%

30-Mar

4%

National

School Easter Holidays

1600

DfE Reporting
Problem

Bank DfE Reporting
Holiday
Problem

1400

Covid19 Cohort
Min Max
48

1530

Bank
Holidays

1200
1000
800
600

400
200
0

1.22

There is a characteristic ‘peak and trough’ pattern to each week which is largely
driven by key worker behaviour – many work part time and their working pattern
would appear to exclude Mondays and Fridays as a group. This pattern is not
prevalent when looking at other groups who are accessing school support during this
period.

Children with social
workers attending
Buckinghamshire schools
Total Cohort
1618
(as at 1st May, based on matching pupil
UPNs to Buckinghmashire school census Jan20)

Covid19 Cohort
Min Max
5
283
% of possible cohort
attending during Covid19
Min Max
0.3% 17.5%

300

School Easter Holidays

250

200

Bank
Holidays

150

100

50

0

Page 12

DfE Reporting
Problem

Bank DfE Reporting
Holiday
Problem

Children with EHCPs
attending
Buckinghamshire schools
Total Cohort
3251
(state-funded schools only, Jan-20
school census)

Covid19 Cohort
Min Max
5
205
% of possible cohort
attending during Covid19
Min Max
0.2% 6.3%

250

200

School Easter Holidays

DfE Reporting
Problem

Bank DfE Reporting
Problem
Holiday

Bank
Holidays

150

100

50

0

1.23

With both groups of vulnerable children, there has been a similar pattern
demonstrated over the period since schools partially closed. Over time we have seen
a steady increase in the number of pupils attending school provision (with an
expected dip during the Easter break). This was an expected pattern for families of
both groups as the challenge of maintaining lockdown with children with sometimes
complex needs has not been sustainable in the long term.

1.24

The data for both groups shows a very low take up for the first few days of the
lockdown. We know that this was due to the way that the DfE rounded
establishment data and supressed any low values, meaning that many children were
not included in the data release. We see this number increase markedly on 27 March
2020 when the DfE revised their methodology.

1.25

In light of the information, schools should expect to see a continued rise in the
number of pupils from vulnerable groups attending and should consider a risk
assessment for each child, in partnership with the family, to identify whether home
or school is the safest place for the individual.

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 15

Click to edit
styletitle style
ClickMaster
to edit title
Master

Children’s Services Priorities
Select Committee
Click to edit Master subtitle style

Click to edit Master subtitle style

27/05/20
27/05/20

Agenda Item 6

Tolis Vouyioukas, Corporate Director
4 June 2020

1

1

1

Priorities – Children’s Social Care
1. Service Improvement (Cllr Shaw)

Page 16

Since the November 2017 ‘Inadequate’ Ofsted re-inspection, Ofsted have completed 4 monitoring
visits (July 2018, December 2018, May 2019 and October 2019), the fifth was due in May 2020;
however, all planned inspection activity has been postponed due to COVID-19. In summary,
improvements have been made to date and the overall progress has been acknowledged by Ofsted
and the DfE; however, the quality of practice in some teams still requires further improvement. All
reports following each visit have commented on the strong political support, the leadership team’s
accurate understanding of what needs to be done, and that our improvement activity is
appropriately targeted. In addition, all our self-assessments presented to Ofsted have been
accepted in full and Ofsted have not identified any areas of concern the service was not aware of
and had not identified already. The main contributing factor which is hindering the pace of progress
in some teams is the difficulties in recruiting high quality, experienced social workers and managers.
A clear priority for this year is to make further progress against our improvement plan in order to
secure better outcomes for the children and young people of Buckinghamshire.

BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

2

Priorities – Children’s Social Care
2. Recovery from COVID 19 (Cllr Shaw)

Page 17

The COVID-19 crisis is a significant challenge to manage and this will continue to effect the service
throughout the rest of the calendar year. The service has reacted promptly and effectively to these
unprecedented circumstances and has acted in a determined and focused way to continue our duty
to protect children and young people. What lies ahead is difficult to predict but the service
continues to experience an increase in the need to conduct physical visits to families. We are
expecting an increase in referrals when children return to school. In order to manage this, a
recovery plan is being developed to ensure that the service continues to provide children, young
people and their families with the support and intervention required to protect them from harm.

BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

2

Priorities – Children’s Social Care
3. Budgetary control (Cllr Shaw)

Page 18

It is well documented nationally, that Children’s Social Care, as a result of increasing demand has
and continues to face unprecedented financial pressures. Despite this, the service must ensure that
these pressures do not have adverse consequences for children and families whilst at the same
time, delivering services within the given financial envelope. Robust financial monitoring is key to
this and like last year, there will be increased monitoring on high risk budget areas, including
staffing, placements for looked after children and client costs

BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

2

Priorities – Children’s Social Care
4. Recruitment of in-house foster carers (Cllr Green)
As shown in the table below, during last year more children were placed within foster care but more
significantly, the proportion of children placed with a Buckinghamshire Council (in-house) carers compared to
those placed with an Independent Fostering Agency increased significantly. In addition, the number of children
placed outside of Buckinghamshire reduced as well as the overall number of looked after children.
Page 19

Number of looked after children
Number and % of children in care living
with foster families
Number and % of children placed with a
Buckinghamshire /in house carer
Number and % of children placed with an
Independent Fostering Agency
Number and % of children in care living
outside the local authority area

31 March 2019
513
342
67%
155
45%
187
55%
272
53%

31 March 2020
492
350
71%
189
54%
161
46%
227
46%

We want to build on last year’s success and further increase our in-house capacity to improve placement
choices for looked after children, reducing our reliance external and more costly placements.
BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

2

Priorities – Children’s Social Care
5. Improving the education and health of looked after children (Cllr Green)

Page 20

We want Buckinghamshire to be the best place for our young people to grow up in and be proud of
having done so. Every parent wants the best for their children and as Corporate Parents, we want
the best for our looked after children. As a service, we must aim to raise the ambitions, educational
attainment and health of looked after children in order to help them realise their potential,
whatever their starting point is.

BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

2

Priorities – Children’s Social Care
6. Transitions (Cllr Green)

Page 21

The transition from childhood through adolescence into adulthood is an important and formative
experience for everyone. Experiences during this period have a huge influence on the rest of a
person’s life, and this is no different for those with disabilities and special educational needs. These
young people have to deal with some additional complexities when moving from one set of support
systems in children’s services to services for adults. As a council and as a service, it is crucial that we
plan early and provide the right support at the right time so that our young people can live a
healthy and fulfilling adult life, in the same way as their peers.

BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

2

Priorities – Education
1. SEND Delivery and Improvements (Cllr Cranmer)

Page 22

In preparation for our local area SEND inspection, we have an Improvement Plan in place to secure
better outcome for our SEND service and in particular, the quality and timeliness of Education,
Health and Care Plans. A priority for this year is to continue to improve the service to ensure that
children and families received the help and support they need.

BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

2

Priorities – Education
2. Improving Education Provision (Cllr Cranmer)

Page 23

It is our ambition to provide all children and young people with access to a high quality, inclusive
education by adopting an all age approach, from supporting access to early years provision through
to the delivery of a diverse curriculum offer for young people post 16. Currently over 95% of early
years providers are rated good or outstanding by Ofsted, and 90% of Buckinghamshire pupils attend
a good or outstanding school. Our priority is to support providers and schools that are not yet good
in order to realise our ambition of achieving the highest quality education for all children of
Buckinghamshire.

BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

2

Priorities – Education
3. Home to School Transport (Cllr Cranmer)

Page 24

The Home to School Transport Policy change, agreed by Cabinet in March 2019, led to the
introduction of charging for home to school transport for families of post 16 students with SEND.
We will be reviewing the model based on the learning from the implementation of the policy so that
we can improve the approach moving forward into future years.

BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

2

